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geology – mousehole

extract from report by eric berry and nick cahill
The age, nature and precise mapping of the raised beaches and wave-cut platforms is important to the town’s history. As regards the underlying geology, it is given as a fact (by the British Geological survey amongst others) that the north half of the town stands on slate/metamorphic rock and the south half on granite. It is said that the large rock at the top end of Duck Street marks the boundary, which re-appears in the gaps between the two arms of the harbour (Harvey, 7). Unfortunately, a tour on the ground just does not match up with this outline. Most importantly, the south pier is clearly built not upon granite at all, but on hard slatey stone. The granite that litters the foreshore here is all in the form of free boulders – many, if not most of which show signs of drill marks and cutting, some at a reasonable time in the past (weather-worn); none appears to be geological bed-rock. These may either be a natural spill, almost like the clitter-slopes downhill of the upland granite tors, or they may represent the off-spill of the 19th century (and earlier) quarrying that took place above the salt ponds.

It proved difficult on the survey to locate granite as a bedrock in Mousehole at levels lower than the 25 metre contour, along which there are several outcrops; lower than this the deep surface layers are probably composed of raised beach material, landslip, soil and granite boulders. Only occasionally do intrusions or fingers of granite seem to project from these higher levels down to sea level - by the Saltponds perhaps, and along the narrow ridge that runs across Chapel Street, down by the rear of Keigwins (exposed in the garden walls of Wesley Square) and out at the Wharf.

That suitable granite of building quality was not necessarily to be found within Mousehole is hinted at by the records of the building of the pier (in the County record Office, Truro), which shows moorstone being collected form ‘the hill’:

1767 Aug 19 – Wm Veale complaining of ‘surprising slow progress made in laying the Inside of the back of the Pier at M’ fears it ‘w’on’t be secured by Winter’ – storms & Ruin etc. Last week found ‘a number of masons … fixing casks to stones, which others might have done’  Enough men but lack of stones, thinks labourers should be employed to make road for a carriage to bring them from the Hill ‘But they are not so plenty on the Hill’ and need seeking for, probably at higher price.(ML 506)

The history of quarrying in and around Mousehole and the parish of Paul is reasonably well known, although much remains to be discovered. Granite quarries operated at Lamorna Castallack and Sheffield, and are shown on the 1880 OS map up Raginnis Hill; the blue elvan was quarried from at least the 1880s at Gwavas/Penlee. There were also mines in and around Mousehole, about which little is known, such as Raginnis Hill Bal, with an adit roughly under the present Carn Dhu Hotel (and the working of which may have enlarged the Mousehole cave) and at Park Lynes Bal north of Mousehole, as well as closer to Penlee and Newlyn. 

Freeman’s’ Quarry

But there is one quarrying enterprise that may have been of greater significance for Mousehole. The levelled platforms above the Saltponds on which Merlin Place was built c.1923 have extremely well-built of granite retaining walls. At first they were assumed to be part of the 1790s salt ponds development occupying the lowest terrace (and built over after an early failure in about 1800). They could well be from the 1790s in terms of construction technique – they are beautifully laid, but there is much evidence for the use of drills on the stones - 1790s is not impossibly early for that, but one would normally suspect a 19th century date. Secondly, there is a large, battered wall at one end of one terrace which looks very much like a tramway base; this could relate to the salt-ponds, but again is much more like a 19th century engineering feature. 

It is likely that these features relate to a quarry set up by Freeman’s and Co. when they were the contractors for the works to the south pier and new north pier in 1870. A contemporary newspaper report says Freeman’s opened a granite quarry a short distance form the harbour, connected by a tramway intended to ship out Lamorna-Sheffield–Mousehole quarry stone, and were erecting sheds and stables near the base of the southern pier. (Harvey 166 – newspaper report 22-3-70).

The Salt Works 

This would certainly be a better explanation for these terraces than as part of the salt ponds; these are in themselves a well-known but little researched aspect of Mousehole’s history that could repay not only documentary research, but also exploration on the ground; unanswered questions relate to how they operated, was the brine partially boiled, how was the water raised to the terrace, were there engine houses, pumps, boilers? How and why did they fail, were there two works (contemporary newspaper reports in the royal Cornwall Gazette refer to both Mousehole Salt Works (Sm8.8.1796 RCG 27.10.04) and Raginnis Cliff Salt Works, Paul? (RCG 14.11.07), and the 1840 Tithe Award still notes land on Raginnis Cliff part of the salt works).
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